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          1  SANITATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: My name is David

          3  Yassky, this is a joint hearing of the Select

          4  Committee on Waterfronts and the Committee on

          5  Sanitation, so ably chaired by Council Member

          6  McMahon.

          7                 Today's hearing will consider the two

          8  very important bills, one of which, the goal is to

          9  start freeing up our waterfront from some of the

         10  wasteful uses that the City has placed on the

         11  waterfront, specifically, salt storage.  Of course,

         12  salt needs to be stored somewhere, but what this

         13  bill says, is we've got to get the salt piles off

         14  the waterfront, where possible, and at the least,

         15  house salt piles in sheds, rather than have

         16  sprawling mounds of salt that will take up less room

         17  and free up space that we can then use for open

         18  space and pocket parks.  It will also have the

         19  important environmental benefit of preventing run-

         20  off of the salt into the water.

         21                 The second bill is aimed directly at

         22  clean water, and would prohibit the City from

         23  dumping snow during snow removal days into the

         24  waterways.  As I say, I'm joined here by Council

         25  Member McMahon, one of the City's leading
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          2  environmentalists, and it is always my pleasure and

          3  I am always proud to sit with him. Council Member

          4  McMahon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you

          6  Council Member Yassky, and thank you for your

          7  leadership, especially on the waterfront issues that

          8  I think no one really ever carried that banner

          9  before within the City Council, and we thank you for

         10  that. My district, the North Shore of Staten Island

         11  is as effective as given broad expansive waterfront

         12  that we have, and so we thank you for that.

         13                 As stated, this is a hearing, a joint

         14  hearing between the Sanitation and Solid Waste

         15  Management Committee and the Select Committee on

         16  Waterfronts, and we are joining together to propose

         17  two bills that would improve our environment.  The

         18  first is Intro. 396, which will mandate all salt

         19  storage facilities be covered to prevent run- off

         20  into our waterways. And, 397 would codify with the

         21  Department as agreed to do, which is to stop dumping

         22  snow filled with salt into our waterways as well.

         23                 And let me say that this is not only

         24  a Department of Sanitation issue.  There sits right

         25  now, probably about three quarters of a mile, right?
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          2  To a mile from the Staten Island Ferry, probably the

          3  largest man- made pile of salt ever seen in the

          4  world.  As it sits there today about 400 feet high.

          5  And, I can let Council know it's not a DOS pile,

          6  it's private.  But, it's about 400 feet high and

          7  it's the size, at least, of a football field.  And,

          8  if any of you know, the Richmond Terrace on Staten

          9  Island, which comes from the ferry, and then the

         10  waterways below it, it actually reaches up to

         11  Richmond Terrace, and double the height again.  And,

         12  it's the distribution point for all private salt,

         13  all salt by a private company, and companies come

         14  from New Jersey and all over, Long Island.

         15                 We have no problem with the business,

         16  but the problem is it sits right on the waterfront.

         17  And, as we sit here, that rain that we see outside

         18  is running down the sides of that mountain of salt

         19  and pouring into our waterways.  And, so this bill

         20  is critical not only for the DOS sheds that we see,

         21  most of them are covered, but also for this very

         22  large facility, and I really should have brought a

         23  picture of it, because you can't, it's about the

         24  size of City Hall.

         25                 So, having said that, it's critical
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          2  that we deal with this problem in a way that allows

          3  this business to continue, and at the same, protect

          4  our environment, and that's what we hope to do with

          5  this legislation.  So, we have been joined by two of

          6  our esteemed colleagues, David Weprin, from Queens,

          7  and Sarah Gonzalez from Brooklyn.  And, having said

          8  that, if you gentlemen would identify yourselves for

          9  the record and provide us our testimony.  Thank you.

         10                 MR. FERRARI:  I'm Renzo Ferrari,

         11  Chief of Operations, Department of Sanitation.

         12                 MR. KLEIN:  Good Afternoon.  Daniel

         13  Klein, Director of Real Estate, Sanitation.

         14                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  Good afternoon.

         15  Steven Brautigam, Assistant Commissioner, Legal

         16  Affairs, Sanitation.

         17                 MR. FERRARI:  Okay, thank you.  Good

         18  afternoon Chairman McMahon, Chairman Yassky and

         19  Members of the Committee on Sanitation and Solid

         20  Waste Management and Select Committee on

         21  Waterfronts.  I am Renzo Ferrari, Chief of

         22  Operations for the New York City Department of

         23  Sanitation.

         24                 I am in here today with Steven

         25  Brautigam, Assistant Commissioner for the Bureau of
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          2  Legal Affairs of the Department, and Dan Klein,

          3  Director of Real Estate for the Department.  I am

          4  here to testify on Intro. Number 396 and 397 under

          5  consideration today.  I will address each bill

          6  separately.

          7                 The magnitude of the Department road

          8  de- icing and snow removal operations during the

          9  Winter snow storm is tremendous.  During our

         10  official snow season, beginning mid November and

         11  ending mid- April, we are responsible for de- icing

         12  and clearing snow for over 18,000 road lane miles

         13  throughout the City.  I am sure you will agree the

         14  importance of roadway safety cannot be understated

         15  during a snow emergency.

         16                 The first bill on today's agenda,

         17  Intro. Number 396, requires the storage of all

         18  Department road salt in impermeable, weather- proof

         19  containers within 90 days after its enactment into

         20  law.  Rock salt is the Department foremost tool in

         21  battling a snow storm when it first begins.  The

         22  Department currently has 34 salt storage sites

         23  strategically located throughout the City.  In

         24  total, they have the capacity to store up to 251,900

         25  tons of rock salt.  Of the 34 sites, 16 are fully
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          2  enclosed within a shed or dome.  At present, we are

          3  working to construct enclosures for six of our

          4  existing undercovered (sic) outdoor salt site,

          5  searching for new sites to store salt.

          6                 In addition, under the Department

          7  Garage Replacement program, the Department in

          8  incorporating enclosed salt storage facilities into

          9  the design plans for its new garages.  However,

         10  acquiring real property within the confines of New

         11  York City to build enclosed salt storage facility is

         12  difficult.  Additionally, the present cost to

         13  construct an enclosed storage shed ranges between

         14  two and four million dollars, depending on the size

         15  and location of the enclosure. Due to the budget and

         16  siting constraints, this process will not happen

         17  overnight.

         18                 Of the Department 34 storage sites,

         19  there are only two uncovered salt piles near the

         20  waterfront.  There are at Vernon Boulevard and 43rd

         21  Avenue in Queens Community District Two, and East

         22  125th Street and the Harlem River, in the Harlem

         23  River in the Community District Number 11.  By 2006,

         24  the Department will close the East 125th Street

         25  site.  It will be replaced by an enclosed facility
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          2  at 125th Street and First Avenue, where the

          3  Department has entered into an agreement with the

          4  MTA.

          5                 The Department also currently

          6  maintains five seasonal salt piles to ensure the

          7  Department road de- icing operations run

          8  efficiently.  The Department must strategically

          9  maintain salt storage site throughout the City.

         10  These sites must be located near highways and roads,

         11  allowing our salt spreaders to quickly access them

         12  for reloading.  As the distance increases between

         13  our salt storage site and those roadways requiring

         14  imminent de- icing due to falling temperatures, the

         15  Department runs the risk of its salt spreaders

         16  getting struck (sic) in traffic and becoming part of

         17  the problem, rather than the solution.

         18                 The Department maintains the five

         19  seasonal salt piles on vacant, open asphalt- sealed

         20  pavement.  During a snow emergency, these salt piles

         21  are assessed (sic) frequently by Department

         22  equipment for loading and reloading.  At the

         23  beginning of the snow storm, the Department places

         24  tarpaulin covers over the piles to keep the salt

         25  inventory contained and protect it from theft.  The
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          2  Department makes every effort to keep covers over

          3  these seasonal piles.

          4                 In reality, however, the covers

          5  become torn during snow emergencies when sanitation

          6  workers attempting to, attempting to quick load and

          7  reload these salt spreaders two or three times

          8  during a 12 hour shift.  At the end of the snow

          9  season, the Department removes all remaining salt

         10  from the seasonal piles, inspects the pavement

         11  surface, makes appropriate repairs, as necessary, to

         12  restore the pavement to its pre- Winter condition.

         13                 I would like to mention that the

         14  Department currently supplies road salt to 21

         15  agency, to agencies and authorized private

         16  companies, such as the MTA, New York City Housing

         17  Authority, the Police and Fire Department, and some

         18  of the private Outer Borough bus companies.

         19  Therefore, the Department's sites must be

         20  conveniently located, accessible, for these entities

         21  to obtain rock salt during snow emergencies.

         22                 Every year, the Department continues

         23  to search for suitable sites for storage, for salt

         24  storage.  It is the Department goal to phase- in the

         25  enclosed storage for all permanent road salt storage
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          2  sites.

          3                 The second bill on today's agenda,

          4  Intro. Number 397, prohibits the dumping of snow or

          5  ice into the waterways surrounding New York City.

          6  First of all, I would like to make perfectly clear

          7  today that it is not the Department's regular policy

          8  to dump snow into the City's surrounding waterways

          9  following an ordinary snow fall or snow storm.

         10  However, under extreme snow condition, snow

         11  emergency conditions, such as the February 2003

         12  President's Day blizzard, more than 24 inches of

         13  snow fell in some part of the City in less than 24

         14  hours.  The Department may have no choice other than

         15  to seek emergency authorization from the State to

         16  dump, to plow snow into the surrounding waters.  For

         17  this reason, the Department opposes the legislation

         18  as unduly restrictive.

         19                 During past declared snow

         20  emergencies, the New York State Department of

         21  Environmental Conservation has granted the

         22  Department temporary authorization to discharge snow

         23  and ice into the waters surrounding the City

         24  pursuant to its emergency regulatory powers.  The

         25  Department requests emergency authorization
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          2  infrequently, and only during serious snow storms,

          3  to end emergency conditions within the City.  In

          4  fact, this occurred only once in the past seven

          5  years during the 2003 President's Day snow blizzard.

          6                 The State DEC imposes strict

          7  conditions for the emergency dumping of snow from a

          8  pier.  For example, during the President's Day

          9  blizzard, the DEC specified one pier to be used, and

         10  limited the authorization for dumping operations to

         11  five days.  The Department must avoid, must avoid

         12  disturbance to tidal wetlands and navigation, and

         13  the activity may not contravene water quality

         14  standards for the East River.  Before depositing the

         15  snow into the water, the Department seeks to ensure

         16  that the snow is free from litter and debris through

         17  a process of spreading and raking it.

         18                 Following a major blizzard, the

         19  Department is under enormous pressure to clear all

         20  the City's thoroughfares expeditiously, especially

         21  in the Borough of Manhattan.  It is critical to the

         22  City economy that areas including Wall Street, Time

         23  Square, Theatre Districts, are fully restored to

         24  pre- storm street.

         25                 Due to geographic confines, areas of
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          2  Manhattan lack adequate space to pile all the snow

          3  cleared from the roadways.  By contrast, the Outer

          4  Boroughs typically have adequate open space,

          5  including many parks, at which the Department can

          6  deliver snow it has hauled during snow operation.

          7  For these reasons, dumping of snow from the City

          8  pier into the surrounding waters occurs only in the

          9  Borough of Manhattan.

         10                 To help reduce the volume of snow

         11  following a major storm, the Department has ten snow

         12  melters stationed throughout the five Boroughs.

         13  Each machine is capable of melting snow at the rate

         14  of one ton per snow per minute, and contains a trap

         15  to collect litter from the plowed snow.  Snow-

         16  melted water is then discharged into the City's

         17  storm sewer system at specified sewer drain directed

         18  and supervised by the City DEP. Department personnel

         19  also monitor the catch basins to ensure they are

         20  free from obstructions.

         21                 Use of the snow melters greatly

         22  reduces the amount of snow the Department must haul

         23  away to open areas for it to melt naturally.  For

         24  example, immediately following the February 2003

         25  President's Day snow storm, the Department's snow
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          2  melters melted approximately 211,000 cubic yards of

          3  snow cleared City wide, of which 100,000 cubic yards

          4  accumulated in Manhattan.  In previous years, there

          5  would have been no alternative but to dump all

          6  100,000 cubic yards into the river.  By comparison,

          7  the Department deposited only 954 cubic yards of

          8  Manhattan snow into the East River pursuant to State

          9  DEC authorization, following the 2003 President's

         10  Day blizzard.

         11                 Despite the availability of snow

         12  melters, we cannot predict the amount of snowfall

         13  that will occur during any snow emergency.

         14  Therefore, the Department must always have options

         15  available that will ensure the timely efficient

         16  clearing of snow from the City roadways, crosswalks,

         17  bus stops and other public areas.  We will now be

         18  happy to answer any of your questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         20  much.  And, I welcome our colleague, Jose Serrano.

         21  I know he was here and I'm sure he will be back.

         22  Let me ask you this, your testimony says that there

         23  are only two uncovered salt piles near the

         24  waterfront.  A few months ago, we got from the

         25  Department a list of salt piles and the list tells

                                                            16

          1  SANITATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  whether they are open or whether they're in sheds,

          3  and by our, by my accounting, at least 14 of these

          4  are right on the water.

          5                 I'll just tell you which ones I'm

          6  referring to, the one in Manhattan, there's a pile

          7  at South and Pike Street, also Manhattan, West 140th

          8  Street on the North River, East 125th Street, the

          9  Harlem River, West 218th Street at the Harlem River.

         10  In the Bronx, one on Serega Avenue, one on East

         11  133rd Street, one in Brooklyn, a salt pile on Cherry

         12  Street, on Forbell Street, and on Pennsylvania

         13  Avenue.  In Queens, on Vernon Boulevard, and at

         14  Bergen Landing and in one in Hedgemere.  And, on

         15  Staten Island, one on Father Capadano Boulevard and

         16  one on Highland Boulevard. Am I, is that correct?

         17                 MR. FERRARI:  The two sites that we

         18  mentioned are right on the water.  These other sites

         19  that you, some of the other sites that you mentioned

         20  are maybe 200, 300 yards, a couple blocks away from

         21  the water.  Like --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Well, I

         23  guess, for our two purposes, I think that these are

         24  all waterfront.  Those two purposes being that we're

         25  occupying the waterfront, and either removal or
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          2  shedding of the salt piles would free up valuable

          3  waterfront space, and also they're close enough so

          4  that when there's rain, there's run- off into the

          5  water.

          6                 Now, let me just again make clear why

          7  I think this is important.  It is widely

          8  acknowledged that New York City makes less use of

          9  its waterfront for the benefit of New Yorkers than

         10  most other cities do, and that we have a long way to

         11  go.  And, this seems, to me, to be an opportunity

         12  for the City itself to be a leader.  I mean, we can

         13  wait until private folks do it, and we can help them

         14  with zoning and so forth.  But, this is an

         15  opportunity for the City itself to say, when you've

         16  got the land that people would pay untold sums for,

         17  because it's got a view of the Manhattan skyline,

         18  maybe the best use for it is not for a pile of salt.

         19    So, that's, so by those two criteria, it prevents

         20  another use of the waterfront and it causes run-

         21  off, aren't these, these are waterfront sites.

         22                 MR. FERRARI:  Now take for example

         23  the one on South End Pike, that's, you know, you

         24  have the roadway, then you have the overpass of the

         25  FDR, and then you have the water.  I mean, it's near

                                                            18

          1  SANITATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  the water, but it's not right on the water.  I don't

          3  know, you know, more or less they are near the

          4  water, but they're not right on the water.  When we

          5  presented this, we said right on the water, which

          6  the two sites are right, feet from the water.  The

          7  other one may be like two, three, four hundred yards

          8  away, couple of blocks away from the water.  That's

          9  the really the criteria that we used there.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Let me ask you

         11  this, in the two sites where you are constructing

         12  sheds --

         13                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Will that, that

         15  will reduce the amount of space taken up by the salt

         16  considerably.  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. FERRARI:  Can you repeat that

         18  please.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  On the two sites

         20  where you're constructing sheds --

         21                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  The sheds will

         23  take up less of a smaller footprint than the

         24  existing salt pile --

         25                 MR. FERRARI:  -- No --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- It will take

          3  up --

          4                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Not really, because

          5  we, we'll pile it pretty high in more or less the

          6  same, the same size area that we're talking about.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Oh, so that's

          8  not going to wind up freeing up any --

          9                 MR. FERRARI:  -- No --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Any --

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  -- No --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Square feet?

         13                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  The waterfront sites

         14  is near 125th Street currently, and that, as you

         15  heard in the testimony, will be relocated back a

         16  way.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And then what

         18  will you do with the rest of the land?

         19                 MR. KLEIN:  The area that's currently

         20  being used for salt in the Harlem River is going to

         21  be used by bridges during the reconstruction of the

         22  East River bridges, and following the reconstruction

         23  of those bridges, it will be turned over to the

         24  Parks Department for part of the greenway around

         25  Manhattan.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That's terrific.

          3    Let me ask you about the snow removal.  You said

          4  DEP requires that before there's any dumping of

          5  melted snow that it, or of any snow, that it be

          6  raked through and trash removed?  Did, you actually

          7  did that?

          8                 MR. BRAUTIGRAM:  That actually was

          9  not on the, on the temporary permit from the DEC,

         10  but it is the Department's practice in, under the

         11  authorization we received for the February 1993

         12  (sic) President's Day snow storm.  The, only Pier 35

         13  was authorized to be used, and so, there's only one

         14  location in the City, in Manhattan, and there was an

         15  effort by the Department to spread and to rake.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Did, isn't that,

         17  I mean, doesn't having to do that make it more

         18  trouble than it's worth? I mean, in other words, if

         19  the goal here is to, this is an emergency expedient

         20  that's required to, you know, make Time Square

         21  passable, do you really, does it save you work, if

         22  the idea is that you have to rake through the snow

         23  to remove the trash?

         24                 MR. FERRARI:  Well, we have to remove

         25  the snow. The Department, that's what it does.  It
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          2  dumps the snow on the pier, we have a couple of

          3  frontloaders there, removes the litter. We have

          4  four, five men there with rakes, removes the litter

          5  as best that we can, and then it gets put into the

          6  water.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  At the end --

          8                 MR. FERRARI:  -- The truck does not

          9  pull up to the pier and dumps the snow right into

         10  water.  It dumps it on the ground, we sort it

         11  through and then we dump it into the water. That's

         12  the protocol.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  So, at the end

         14  of the day, you dumped 1,000 cubic yards of snow?

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  No, last --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Yea, it was

         17  less than that --

         18                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Last President's Day

         19  storm, we did nine hundred and --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- I mean, 954,

         21  it says --

         22                 MR. FERRARI:  -- We did nine hundred

         23  and --

         24                 MR. KLEIN:  -- Right, yea --

         25                 MR. FERRARI:  954 cubic yards, that
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          2  was for the duration of this storm.  We melted

          3  100,000 --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Right, I'm

          5  just wondering, I mean, it's such a tiny amount that

          6  I'm wondering if that's really.  I mean, that could

          7  not have saved you any material, that could not have

          8  made a material difference in the condition of the

          9  roads, whether you dumped it in the water or not.

         10  954 cubic yards? In the whole City?

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  No, this is only in

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All right.

         14                 MR. FERRARI:  What we're trying to

         15  say here, we're only going to use the snow, the

         16  waterfront dumps when it's absolutely necessary.

         17  Now, when we went through this at the beginning of

         18  this storm, we did not know how our snow melters

         19  were going to work, this is something, new

         20  technology.  So, we did have a couple of days there

         21  where there was an overflow of traffic around the

         22  melters, so we diverted some trucks over there.

         23  And, we only did it, like you said, very limited.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Are you saying

         25  that now that you see how the melters work you don't
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          2  think this will be necessary in the future?

          3                 MR. FERRARI:  It may be necessary in

          4  the future storms.  I mean, every storm is

          5  different.  You may get a storm, back to back storm,

          6  you may get more snow, the temperatures may be

          7  colder so that the melters will not be as effective.

          8    You know, there's a lot of variables that go into

          9  that, those decisions.

         10                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  I think one of the

         11  Department's concerns, or perhaps the main concern,

         12  is to preserve flexibility here, so we can really

         13  respond to what is, in fact, a declared emergency.

         14  There is a process to get authorization from the

         15  State here through the regional office.  There are

         16  limitations on how the Department can do the snow

         17  clearing.  And, if a storm were even greater than

         18  the two feet that we received on President's Day, we

         19  definitely want the option to be able to clear these

         20  very constricted areas, such as the Wall Street

         21  area, there's just no place to pile the snow, and

         22  that's, in fact, near where Pier 35 dump site was.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I'm sitting here

         24  processing what you've told me.  It sounds like, in

         25  retrospect, and obviously, I'm not saying to say you
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          2  should have done differently in retrospect.  But

          3  now, thinking about the future, it wasn't, it was

          4  non- necessity for the 2003 storm, right?  In other

          5  words, that was, that small amount of snow, I don't

          6  know, nine, that's probably, it would almost fit in

          7  this room.

          8                 MR. FERRARI:  It was a necessity at

          9  the time. When you were there fighting the snow

         10  storm for that day, maybe that's when we used most

         11  of the dumping done, but, afterwards, the snow

         12  melters were able to do the job.  You gotta (sic)

         13  remember after this snow storm in --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- A thousand

         15  cubic yards is ten yards, by ten yards, by ten

         16  yards, right?  So, that's probably, that would fit

         17  in this room.  I would think.

         18                 MR. FERRARI:  It's not a lot of snow.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  So, I mean, I'm

         20  just saying, in retrospect, we didn't, you didn't,

         21  in retrospect, had you not, you didn't need to, you

         22  didn't need the river dumping to deal with the snow

         23  storm.  You may have thought that you did because

         24  you didn't, you weren't confident about the capacity

         25  of the melters.  But, as it turned out, you know, it
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          2  could have processed an extra amount of snow, you

          3  know, equal in this, they could have processed an

          4  extra room full of snow.

          5                 MR. FERRARI:  In hindsight, maybe you

          6  could say that, but --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Right --

          8                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Again, after this,

          9  the last storm, that storm particularly, the weather

         10  wasn't cold, so the snow didn't really get a chance

         11  to freeze up and form ice, where then the snow

         12  melters wouldn't have worked as good.  So, you make

         13  the decision there that day, and then you would

         14  hope.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, I'm still

         16  thinking about the 400 feet total.  Could you

         17  identify, you know, some playgrounds, park area,

         18  that could be snow removal sites, rather than

         19  dumping it in the river?

         20                 MR. FERRARI:  Not in Manhattan, we

         21  have nothing in Manhattan, not one single parking

         22  area to dump snow.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, Battery

         24  Park --

         25                 MR. FERRARI:  -- You have no snow
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          2  dumps in Manhattan.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I mean, that's

          4  not my, I can't, you know, I don't understand your

          5  operational needs, but- yea, or maybe one of the

          6  melt, I mean, where, you have ten melters?

          7                 MR. FERRARI:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And where they

          9  operate? All in Manhattan, or in?

         10                 MR. FERRARI:  No, four of them in

         11  Manhattan, the other six are the other Boroughs.

         12  Our snow dump sites --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- What do they

         14  cost? --

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Are becoming fewer

         16  and fewer.  We lose, every year we're losing snow

         17  dump sites, and you know, and the Parks Department

         18  really doesn't, is not happy that we use their sites

         19  also, you know.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, I

         21  understand, but you know, given our water quality

         22  constraints that we're already existing under,

         23  that's got to be a better solution.  What do they

         24  cost, the snow melters?

         25                 MR. FERRARI:  About 230, $230,000 a
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          2  piece.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.  Yes,

          4  alright, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  I have a couple

          6  questions, if I may, regarding 396 and the location

          7  of the salt piles, historically, how were those

          8  sites determined?  Was that done sort of haphazard

          9  over time, or there is a reason why every pile is

         10  located where it's located?

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  Well, you need the salt

         12  piles where they are centrally located, you have

         13  major highways around, communities, to deal with

         14  communities.  Over the years, you know, maybe the

         15  piles were there before that, over the years, but

         16  they were established, then we got to build the

         17  facility once we owned the property, or we were able

         18  to lease the property.  There's no such, it's a case

         19  by case basis.  I mean --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- But the

         21  majority of them don't abut like a district garage,

         22  do they?  I mean, they're kind of spread out away

         23  from the district garages, right?

         24                 MR. FERRARI:  Yes, but our policy in

         25  the last ten, 15 years is to put a salt dome next to
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          2  a garage.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:     I'm sorry.

          4                 MR. FERRARI:  To put a salt dome next

          5  to the garage.  All new garages being built or

          6  planning to be built will have a salt dome, if we

          7  have the room --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- Will

          9  incorporate that --

         10                 MR. FERRARI:  -- If we have the room

         11  next to it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So, the ones,

         13  of the ones that exist now, and that was 34 I think,

         14  how many are attended or adjacent to garages and how

         15  many aren't?  If you, just give me a rough idea.

         16                 MR. FERRARI:  I would say about ten,

         17  12.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  About ten or

         19  12, so, about a third --

         20                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- And the

         22  other two thirds --

         23                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Yea, about a third

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- Are,
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          2  wherever they are, over time, for whatever, was

          3  located, whether it was central location --

          4                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- Availability

          6  of land, there was no set pattern --

          7                 MR. FERRARI:  -- There is no set

          8  pattern, case- by case basis.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  How does this

         10  all come to the salt pile?

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  Well, private companies

         12  deliver it. You know, we have salt delivery that

         13  come over from Staten Island, or New Jersey.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  In trucks, I

         15  take it.

         16                 MR. FERRARI:  In trucks and trailers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So, there's no

         18  reason to have these facilities close to the water

         19  for barging, is there? I mean, none of the

         20  deliveries are made by barge?

         21                 MR. FERRARI:  No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So, the fact

         23  that so many of them are near the waterfront, is

         24  that just because over time, this land was vacant,

         25  run down, neglected, available, let's put the salt
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          2  there.  I'm not making any, this is not a criticism

          3  at all --

          4                 MR. FERRARI:  -- No --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON: -- I'm just,

          6  just to get a historical --

          7                 MR. KLEIN:  -- If you look at a lot

          8  of the sites that we have, specifically in

          9  Manhattan, and look at the way that we operate in

         10  order to clear streets during snow emergencies and

         11  any type of snow or ice situation, we divide the

         12  City into a series of different levels of streets.

         13                 We have primary streets that are your

         14  major avenues, obviously in Manhattan, the highways,

         15  and we try to place these piles historically and

         16  even now, near where the primary streets are.  And,

         17  the reason we do that, is to minimize the time

         18  required to reload spreaders once they empty.  So,

         19  we don't want empty spreaders running around

         20  Manhattan or the rest of the City during a snow

         21  emergency, not really helping at all, and just

         22  creating a traffic problem.  We want the spreaders

         23  on the streets as quickly as possible, putting salt

         24  on the roadways, so that we clear up those roadways.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  But --
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          2                 MR. KLEIN:  -- We started our Garage

          3  Replacement program in the early 1980's.  And, since

          4  then, where space permits, when we construct a new

          5  garage, we try to include a salt storage structure

          6  with that garage.  And, the reason for that is so

          7  that the initial load that the spreaders go out with

          8  happens at the garage location.  Again, that saves

          9  time, it makes sense. If a spreader comes back

         10  because there's no need put to the salt on the road,

         11  it's where it's starting from.  But, we still

         12  require those locations on the primary routes that

         13  we're going to do first, to again have those

         14  spreaders on the roads, de- icing as quickly and as

         15  long as possible.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  This is

         17  probably a good time for me, just a reminder, that

         18  district one garage on Staten Island needs to be

         19  replaced, just a reminder.  But that' --

         20                 MR. KLEIN:  -- And we have a site --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Hear, hear --

         22                 Mr. KLEIN:  -- That we've identified

         23  with the community board for that, and the ULURP

         24  application, we've submitted on that, next year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, I
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          2  appreciate that. And that will include a salt

          3  facility as well?

          4                 MR.. KLEIN:  It's our intent to do

          5  that.  The site would be on the north side of

          6  Richmond Terrace, so there will be waterfront issues

          7  that people will have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Oh, that's the

          9  Arling, we better, let's save that for another --

         10                 MR. KLEIN:  -- That's a separate

         11  meeting --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- A separate

         13  meeting, and a separate very big issue.  My point

         14  is, there's no historical or transportation- related

         15  reason for the facilities that exist now, especially

         16  those on the waterfront, to remain where they are?

         17  Is there?

         18                 MR. KLEIN:  Well, there is, if you go

         19  borough- by borough and see where these locations

         20  are, for the most part, if they're on the, near, on

         21  or near the waterfront in Manhattan, those are, you

         22  know, historically, the FDR, the Westside Highway,

         23  Henry Hudson Parkway, Harlem River Drive, those are

         24  the first roads we're going to hit.  At the same

         25  time, as we try to get into the, you know, the Wall
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          2  Street area, the Theatre District, Time Square, the

          3  business districts, First Avenue, where the

          4  hospitals are.  So, the salt piles are on, all near

          5  those locations.

          6                 As you get to the Outer Boroughs,

          7  we're near major highways, so that the, so that when

          8  the spreaders are empty, they're able to refill

          9  quickly, whether you take the Navy yard facility

         10  that's right off the BQE, Cherry Street's right off

         11  a BQE exit.  So, it enables us to get off and on the

         12  highway quickly to do what we have to do to keep

         13  those roadways clear. So, there is rhyme and reason

         14  for where these salt piles are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So, if they

         16  have to stay there, there's no reason not to cover

         17  them, other than the cost of covering them?

         18                 MR. KLEIN:  There's issue of cost,

         19  there's issues of, as you move forward on

         20  constructing the pile, it's not just putting a

         21  cover, what we do, is we basically prepare the

         22  ground to take a structure that will be able to hold

         23  the amount of salt that's there.  It takes a period

         24  of time.  It's not something that happens over a

         25  period of months, so that we would have to relocate
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          2  a pile and have it up for the following snow season

          3  while construction is moving forward at that

          4  location. So, you'd almost need swing space for a

          5  salt pile in order to build a facility on an

          6  existing site.  So, there's the timing issue.

          7  There's issues working with the community boards and

          8  civic associations, Borough President's office, in

          9  identifying sites that meet their sensitivity needs

         10  and meet our operational needs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Is there a day

         12  in your mind that all the piles will be covered?

         13                 MR. KLEIN:  We couldn't give you a

         14  date.  I know, as we're moving forward, we, for

         15  example, we're building a new garage in Manhattan at

         16  57th Street that will take the pile that's at Pier

         17  97.  That's going to move next to the garage in an

         18  enclosed facility.  The Brooklyn One and Four Garage

         19  will replace the Cherry Street pile.  The pile

         20  that's at Edgemere in Queens, the Rockaways, is

         21  going to be, has been relocated and will be in an

         22  enclosed facility with the garage that was recently

         23  approved for that community board.  The Staten

         24  Island situation will have a new salt pile,

         25  hopefully, at the site for Staten Island One, and
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          2  we're looking for a site for a Staten Island Three

          3  Garage that would take care of the Mount Loretto

          4  location.  So, we are moving forward.

          5  Unfortunately, it's a slow process to try to enclose

          6  all the piles, and that's our intent, and I think

          7  everyone's intent.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Is the Mount

          9  Loretto site a permanent or a, a full- time or a

         10  seasonal site?  It doesn't say on our chart.

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  It's year round.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  It's year

         13  round.  So, on Staten Island, there are four year

         14  round and one seasonal.

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  But that's on private

         16  property, I believe.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  On Mount

         18  Loretto?

         19                 MR. FERRARI:  Yea.  I think it's, the

         20  Catholic Charities own the property down there.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, and has

         22  the Department ever looked at the composition of the

         23  salt, and made a, do you have an opinion on whether

         24  or not the open salt piles are a health risk or not?

         25    Or, an environmental problem or not? Do you have
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          2  an opinion on that?

          3                 MR. FERRARI:  Operationally, you

          4  know, after you leave the salt there for a while, it

          5  creates a crust that you need a bulldozer just to

          6  break it up, and basically, when it rains, it just,

          7  the water just runs right out, off of it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So,

          9  operationally, it's better to have it covered or

         10  not?

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  No, what I'm, yes, of

         12  course, because the salt is more effective when it's

         13  covered, and you won't get the clunks (phonetic), so

         14  to speak.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Has the

         16  Department ever looked at, or studied, or looked at

         17  what the effects are of having the uncovered piles,

         18  in terms of the run- off?

         19                 MR. FERRARI:  We, I don't think we

         20  ever did a study on that, but, go ahead.

         21                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  No, I'm not aware of

         22  any study done by that, the salt itself, of course,

         23  is industry standard rock salt, and --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- That

         25  contains chlorine, right, I mean, it has chlorine in
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          2  it?

          3                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  Sodium chloride.  I'm

          4  not aware if a --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- Doesn't

          6  industrial salt have chlorine in it?  I guess we

          7  have to study that a little bit.  And, the fact, the

          8  dust, has anybody, I mean, in your opinion, do the

          9  uncovered piles create a dusting condition?  Have

         10  you ever noticed in the area around the piles, all

         11  the dust that's there?

         12                 MR. FERRARI:  No, no, because, no

         13  we've never seen dust, because it creates this big

         14  crust, and it gets very thick and hard.  Like I

         15  said, there's no dust or the water doesn't go into

         16  the salt, it just flies right off the salt.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, thank

         18  you.  We're joined by Council Member Jim Gennaro,

         19  who has a question, and our colleague, Robert

         20  Jackson, as well.  Oh, I'm sorry, I apologize.

         21  There's a problem when you have two heads here.

         22  Council Member Gonzalez is on the list first for a

         23  question.  I'm sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you

         25  Chairman  Good afternoon.  My question is for Mr.
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          2  Ferrari.  At the risk of sounding as though I did

          3  not comprehend what you said about the removal of

          4  the debris, I mean, four men?  How much --

          5                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Okay it's

          6  approximately four, five men near the pile, with

          7  rakes, plus --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- How big

          9  is that pile?

         10                 MR. FERRARI:  Well, we spread it

         11  around in quite a bit of area, like, maybe 100 by

         12  100, and then, no 100 by 60, let's say, and then we

         13  pick it up and throw the snow into the water --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  So --

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  -- In other words, the

         16  water does not go directly from the truck into the

         17  water.  It gets dumped, we cleaned the litter out,

         18  then it gets thrown into the river.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  And, is it

         20  realistic to think that it's actually clean at that

         21  point?  I just want to --

         22                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Well, every attempt

         23  it made to keep it clean --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- Large,

         25  you're talking about like large pieces of whatever?
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          2  Not --

          3                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Well, litter --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  --

          5  Everything comes out --            MR. FERRARI:  --

          6  Litter baskets or anything to that nature is going

          7  to be pulled out, and most of the litter than can be

          8  pulled out --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- Most --

         10                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  But not

         12  all.  Okay, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council Member

         14  Gennaro.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you

         16  Mr. Chairman, thank you Mr. Chairman.  Yea, I just

         17  want to follow- up on some of the conversation about

         18  the substance that you use for, that's put down on

         19  the roads in the Winter.  Chlorine is, you know,

         20  part of salt, it's sodium chloride, it's an ion, and

         21  so, but chloride is not like that reactive or

         22  whatever, but, chloride is from chlorine.

         23                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  We put it on our

         24  food, of course.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Of course,
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          2  yea, I just wanted to talk chemistry for a minute.

          3  But, some of the other agents that are put into the

          4  salt pile, to keep from clumping or whatnot,

          5  ferrocyanide and other substances that are put into

          6  the salt.  I'm just, and I'm not an expert on the

          7  types of salts or substances which are used, but is

          8  that kind of the industry standard thing?  Are there

          9  other de- icing substances that are used in other

         10  locations that might not have those chemical

         11  compounds in them?  Is there a variety of salt

         12  products that can be used, or is this the standard,

         13  you know, road salt that everyone uses every place,

         14  no matter where you go?

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  Well, we use rock salt.

         16    There are some communities that use solar salt.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Pardon?

         18                 MR. FERRARI:  Some communities use

         19  solar salt.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  What kind of

         21  salt?  I didn't --

         22                 MR. FERRARI:  Solar, solar.  Where --

         23

         24                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  -- It's a dried

         25                 MR. FERRARI:  -- It's dried, they
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          2  pull the, I think, ocean water and some --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- Oh, I see

          4   --

          5                 MR. FERRARI:  -- And they let the sun

          6  evaporate the water --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- If you

          8  could pull the microphone a little closer, so even

          9  if you're turning to the side we'll still be able to

         10  hear you.

         11                 MR. FERRARI:  That's the only other

         12  salt that I know of.  Rock salt and solar salt.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Solar salt.

         14  You mean it's like an evaporate, essentially?

         15                 MR. FERRARI:  Right.

         16                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  We also, we do use

         17  liquid calcium chloride, which would be applied

         18  along with the rock salt, and that helps melt at

         19  lower temperatures,

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right, well

         21  the liquid calcium chloride would be, I guess, like

         22  a more pure substance, is that fair to say? Because

         23  it's in liquid form, or it's some sort of, or it may

         24  not be, because whose

         25                 Mr. BRAUTIGAM:  -- Again, it's an

                                                            42

          1  SANITATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  industry standard --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- What do

          4  they mix it with in order to make it into a liquid

          5  at a low temperature? What I'm getting at is whether

          6  or not the composition of like the salt heaps, you

          7  know, has to be the way it is, and whether or not

          8  there's any cost effective way, if it made sense, to

          9  use materials that might not leach the same kind of

         10  things.  Not that the salt pile is a toxic

         11  catastrophe by any means.  But, always with a view

         12  towards taking common sense steps to minimize

         13  environmental exposures, and particularly with some

         14  of the clumping agents, or some of the anti-

         15  clumping agents that are used to make the salt more

         16  usable.

         17                 And, I'm wondering whether or not

         18  there has been as effort to look into that, whether

         19  there are other substances and whether or not any

         20  jurisdiction -- well, you mentioned the solar salt,

         21  they use solar salt, which is the evaporite, is that

         22  more expensive?  Is that mixed with other products

         23  to make it better able to be used? --

         24                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Well, we --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- Tell me
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          2  about the solar salt.

          3                 MR. FERRARI:  We experimented with

          4  solar salt two years ago, and we had very bad

          5  results.  First of all, it tends to, tends to create

          6  water, it, you leave a pile there and you could see

          7  water, salt water right around it.  When you put it

          8  in the salt spreader, it tends to make a big,

          9  attaches to each other and makes a big clunk, so the

         10  spreaders get stuck and we have to reload them by

         11  hand.  So, we have a very bad experience with solar

         12  salt.  As far as the cost, I think it's a, it's

         13  about the same as rock salt.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So, the cost

         15  is about the same, you would store it the same way

         16   --

         17                 MR. FERRARI:  -- Right --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- It looks

         19  similar, you put it in the pile, but it tends to

         20  clump and it has other properties that you find

         21  undesirable?

         22                 MR. FERRARI:  Very undesirable.  You

         23  will see it, you will see the big difference

         24  between, I mean, a pile of rock salt or solar salt.

         25                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  -- I just want to --
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          2                 MR. FERRARI:  -- You will see a lot

          3  of humidity. It produces a lot of humidity and a lot

          4  of water on it.

          5                 MR. BRAUTIGAM:  I just wanted to add

          6  that the Department does try to stay abreast of any

          7  new developments, any new technology.  We have

          8  personnel attending periodic conferences on snow

          9  clearing, and obviously are open to any new ideas.

         10  Haven't found anything that would replace what we're

         11  doing now.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         14                 MR. FERRARI:  Thank you very much,

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you very

         16  much for coming and thank you for your continued

         17  hard work on behalf of the people of the City of New

         18  York.

         19                 MR. KLEIN:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  It's very much

         21  appreciated. Thank you.  Okay, our next panel

         22  includes Debbie Mans from the New York/New Jersey

         23  Baykeepers.  Mark Caserta from the New York League

         24  of Conservation Voters, Ronald Dillon from the

         25  Concerned Homeowners Association, and that's it.
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          2  And let me just say that Justin Bloom was here from

          3  the Riverkeepers, and he could not stay, but he did

          4  leave written testimony.  Why don't we start with

          5  age before beauty, go ahead Mark.

          6                 MR. CASERTA:  Okay.  Well, good

          7  afternoon, my name is Mark Caserta, the New York

          8  League of Conservation Voters. Today, the Committee

          9  in Sanitation and Solid Waste Management and the

         10  Select Committee on Waterfronts are taking important

         11  steps in improving the City's waterfront and

         12  waterways.

         13                 The first step was taken in 2002,

         14  when the Council passed Local Law 20, requiring the

         15  City to develop a database of City- owned property

         16  on the waterfront.  The next step is to remove non-

         17  water dependent City- owned facilities from the

         18  waterfront, making room for new parks, housing and

         19  economic development projects.

         20                 Intro. 396 requires the City to cover

         21  all salt piles located throughout the City.  We

         22  think it's appropriate. We'd love to see them

         23  removed, if possible.  And, I've taken a picture and

         24  attached it here of the East 125th Street one, I'd

         25  certainly like to see that one moved sooner, rather
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          2  than later. I know 2006 is the number, I think

          3  that's not soon enough.  And, so you know, the park

          4  that's supposed to be built there won't be built

          5  until 2013, when Transportation vacates, so, we've

          6  got a long way to go.  So, the most obvious -- I've

          7  just described it for you, so, I'm just going to go

          8  through my testimony quickly.

          9                 Now Intro. 397, we're supporters of

         10  the bill, you know, as we've talked, this is not

         11  Colorado ski slope snow that's being picked up off

         12  of the streets, and although I learned something

         13  new, that they actually put the snow in piles and

         14  rake through it, it doesn't seem to me that they're

         15  going to get through most of the debris that's going

         16  in there.

         17                 Environmentalists and City officials

         18  spend a lot of time, and State officials and Federal

         19  officials, trying to clean up our waterways.  And,

         20  this seems like, you know, if you can avoid it, we

         21  should be avoiding dumping salty, dirty snow into

         22  the river.  So, with that, I'm pretty much done,

         23  enjoy the picture, and I'll answer questions later.

         24                 MS. MANS:  My name is Debbie Mans,

         25  and I'm with New York/New Jersey Baykeeper.  We're a
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          2  non- profit conservation and advocacy group, with a

          3  mission to protect, preserve and restore the Hudson-

          4  Raritan Estuary, which includes the New York Harbor.

          5    And Andrew Willner is our Baykeeper, and he's been

          6  working for 14 years to restore this damaged, but

          7  recovering estuary.

          8                 In short, and I speak on behalf of

          9  Hudson Riverkeeper as well, Hudson Riverkeeper and

         10  New York/New Jersey Baykeeper strongly support both

         11  of the proposed amendments that are the subject of

         12  this hearing.  The estuary that we live in is a

         13  highly productive ecosystem, but it also a fragile

         14  ecosystem.

         15                 Regarding Into. Number 397, just to

         16  mix things up a little, the dumping of snow and ice

         17  into the port waters of New York can have dramatic

         18  impacts on the ecosystem by releasing a suite of

         19  pollutants in large quantities.  Plowed or

         20  accumulated snow contains road salt, sand,

         21  antifreeze, oil, gasoline, brake fluid and trash,

         22  basically any material that accumulates on our

         23  roadways.  Dumping untreated snow directly into

         24  water bodies can harm aquatic life and create silt

         25  plumes and garbage slicks. Additionally, the
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          2  accumulated dirt and sand could smother viable

          3  shellfish beds in both New York and New Jersey

          4  waters.

          5                 Regarding Intro. Number 396, the need

          6  for this amendment is clear.  Salts become very

          7  soluble when they come into contact with storm

          8  water.  As the storm water migrates into ground

          9  water or surface water through storm drain systems

         10  or non point source pollution, it contaminates the

         11  waterbodies.  This threat is serious enough that

         12  Canada's Environmental Protection Agency has

         13  declared road salt as an environmental toxin.

         14                 Further, even New York City Watershed

         15  Rules and Regulations designed to protect New York

         16  City's water supply from contamination, degradation

         17  and pollution, require the construction and

         18  installation of new sand and salt material storage

         19  facilities, where either existing facilities did not

         20  comply with the watershed regulations or where

         21  upgrades to existing facilities were needed to

         22  protect water quality.  It seems disingenuous at

         23  best that within the confines of New York City

         24  itself, the same requirements would not apply.

         25                 And, further, and perhaps this is the
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          2  most important point, salt storage must be moved

          3  away from the waterfront to free up this valuable

          4  land for public access, parks and water dependent

          5  uses.  We must ask ourself, what is the highest and

          6  best use of New York City's waterfronts? And salt

          7  storage is definitely not the answer.  Thank you.

          8            CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you.  Ms.

          9  Mans, the comment that the Canada's Environmental

         10  Protection Agency has declared road salt an

         11  environmental toxin, is that a report that you have

         12  or information that you could share with us? Or, do

         13  I have --

         14                 MS. MANS:  -- I could get it to you

         15   --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- That's fine

         17   --

         18                 MS. MANS:  -- Absolutely --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  -- Would you do

         20  that, get it to us?

         21                 MS. MANS:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you.  I

         23  didn't think you had it with you now.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. MANS:  Thank you,
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I guess for both

          3  of you, on the snow removal, I was surprised and

          4  interested to learn, actually how little snow was

          5  dumped this past Winter.  Should I be concerned

          6  about that?  I mean, if we're talking about a

          7  thousand cubic yards, on the one hand, I say the

          8  Department, you don't need to, that means you really

          9  don't need to activate this whole cumbersome, you

         10  know, get a special permit, and go to the pier and

         11  dump in the river, obviously you don't need to do

         12  that for a thousand yards.  On the other hand,

         13  that's not a, that's probably not a material water

         14  quality issue either, is it?  Or, is it?  That's my

         15  question to you.

         16                 MR. CASERTA:  Well, from an

         17  operational standpoint, obviously, it's not a lot of

         18  snow.  But, I mean, I think they mentioned, I saw

         19  one of these salt or these snow melters working on

         20  Murray Street here, right after that storm. And,

         21  they seemed like a pretty efficient operation, and

         22  at $250,000 a pop, having a few more of those for

         23  our roads might, you know, I mean, because you never

         24  know, this year, they didn't need it, next year they

         25  might.  There might be two storms right in a row.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  It occurred to

          3  me, and I will follow- up with the Department to

          4  make sure I understand this.  On heavy snow days,

          5  are those all, do those also end up being combined

          6  through our overflow days?  In other words, by

          7  melting the snow and putting it into the storm

          8  sewers, do we just get it into the river by another

          9  means?

         10                 MR. CASERTA:  You know, I don't know

         11  for sure, but my guess is the snow is melting too

         12  slowly to do that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I'm sorry, say

         14  it again. I'm sorry, Mark, I didn't hear you.

         15                 MR. CASERTA:  I'm sorry, I was

         16  saying, usually when you get combines through

         17  overflow, it's a pretty hefty rain, along with

         18  regular sewer usage.  If, I think, I would think it

         19  would be during, you know, from melting snow with

         20  these, this equipment, along with heavy melting, a

         21  sudden warm day after a snow storm.  But, I don't

         22  know for sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Right --

         24                 MS. MANS:  -- Well --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- I guess
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          2  that's worth following- up with them.  Plainly, the

          3  melting day must be a CSO day --

          4                 MR. CASERTA:  -- Yea --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- But, perhaps,

          6  the continued, the cold day, where they're melting

          7  it, if you're using the machines, and putting it in

          8  the sewers, that may not be a CSO day --

          9                 MS. MANS:  -- Well, I --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- I'll follow-

         11  up with them to figure that out.

         12                 MS. MANS:  I think you have to take

         13  into consideration as well, I mean, we could spend a

         14  whole day on problems New York City has with its

         15  CSO's, but, during our wet weather --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- That's why I

         17  just raised it, you understand why I'm raising it --

         18                 MS. MANS:  -- No, I understand --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- The question

         20  is, does it matter whether it goes into the river,

         21  whether it's dumped in the river or whether they

         22  melt it and put it into the sewer.

         23                 MS. MANS:  Well, it's my

         24  understanding that the snow melters have a filter to

         25  catch the debris, and as well, you have the minimum
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          2  controls on CSO outfalls that would catch floatables

          3  and along with other debris.  So, at least there is

          4  that measure.

          5                 MR. CASERTA:  Yea, that's a good

          6  point.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All right.  At

          8  least you get the big, you're not going to get the,

          9  you know, the oil and the road- type pollutants, but

         10  you would at least get the larger objects.  So,

         11  there's some value.  And, on the salt piles, thank

         12  you Mark for supplying the dates to the Department's

         13  testimony, that does make it seem less exciting, to

         14  say the least.  What are the next two, if these are

         15  the two sheds they're doing, what are the next two

         16  to shed, in your opinion?

         17                 MR. CASERTA:  Well, you know, I mean,

         18  I looked at this last night --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- You can

         20  follow- up with that if that's a better, something

         21  you'd like to think about. But --

         22                 MR. CASERTA:  -- Yea, I'd be able to

         23  think about it, I mean, I don't see why they can't

         24  do the East Harlem one right away, in 2006, seems,

         25  you know, I mean get something temporary over, have
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          2  you ever visited the site?  It really is, I know

          3  they say it kind of turns hard and water kind of

          4  rushes over it.  But, when you see the on shore side

          5  of the salt pile, is the evidence of the salt

          6  actually going into the water.  You see hard, white

          7  salt attached to the ground, with evidence of its

          8  falling over the sea wall.  So, you know, no matter

          9  what, it's been happening for years --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  -- Yea --

         11                 MR. CASERTA:  -- And it's going to be

         12  two more years.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, Council

         14  Member Gennaro.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

         16  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Hi Mark, Hi Debbie.  I just

         17  wanted to put to you the question that I put to the

         18  representatives from Department of Sanitation

         19  regarding the availability of other substances that

         20  might be able to be used, if there is such a thing.

         21                 I haven't studied it myself, I don't

         22  know, the gentleman from DOS mentioned solar salt,

         23  you know, some kind of evaporite that they didn't

         24  feel had a good performance.  But, anything that you

         25  all may know about, that if there is such a thing,

                                                            55

          1  SANITATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  or perhaps just to manage it better and put it in

          3  sheds and move it away from the waterfront and use

          4  it, you know, like a little more judiciously, or you

          5  know, like those kinds of management techniques or

          6  whether or not it makes any sense to play with the

          7  substance itself.  Whether there are other people

          8  out there that have found a better way to sort of

          9  skin the cat, so to speak?

         10                 MR. CASERTA:  I don't know of any

         11  off- hand.  I mean, it would certainly be helpful,

         12  because, I mean, there's an issue of run- off from

         13  the roads and hurting trees and plants.  That's been

         14  talked about a long time.  So, certainly, you know,

         15  if it can be pursued, that'd be great.  But,

         16  ultimately, shedding it and getting it off of the

         17  waterfront is, you know, another goal --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- Right --

         19                 MR. CASERTA:  -- Certainly, no matter

         20  what --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- Sure, I

         22  just didn't know whether, I think of other

         23  substances that melt things and some of the

         24  chemistry that comes to mind is a little more

         25  complicated than what you find in like rock salt
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          2  that may be the most benign thing out there.  I

          3  don't, I just don't know for sure --

          4                 MR. CASERTA:  -- Yea, I don't know --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- And, if

          6  you know of anything, let us know.

          7                 MR. CASERTA:  Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I'm not a

          9  science, I'm not a student of the science of melting

         10  substances or whatever, but --

         11                 MR. CASERTA:  -- So few are, I think.

         12                 MS. MANS:  I think I would, and

         13  again, I don't know off- hand anything, but I would

         14  really recommend looking closely at the best

         15  management practices of application with the

         16  Department of Sanitation and make sure that they're

         17  using it, just as you said, judiciously, and in a

         18  proper way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         20  thank you.

         21                 MR. CASERTA:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you both

         23  for your very enlightening testimony, and again,

         24  Chair McMahon, thank you today, as always, for your

         25  leadership on these issues.  This hearing is
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          2  concluded.  Thank you.

          3                 (Meeting adjourned)

          4  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          5  JUSTIN BLOOM

          6  RIVERKEEPER

          7                 Relocation of salt storage facilities

          8  is an important step in protecting the ecological

          9  integrity of and public access to the New York

         10  City's vital waterfront resources. After more than

         11  half a century of widespread use in North America,

         12  the storage and application of road salt has come

         13  under recent scrutiny for its environmental

         14  consequences.  Road salt typically contains sodium

         15  ferrocyanide and a variety of chlorides, which can

         16  break down into cyanide and negatively charged

         17  chloride ions that are harmful to wildlife,

         18  vegetation and aquatic organisms.  By relocating

         19  salt piles to contained upland facilities, the City

         20  can expand public access to its waterfront while

         21  improving water quality in the estuary.  New York

         22  City would benefit greatly by also re- examining its

         23  road salt application and de- icing practices.

         24                 Chemical Composition of Road Salts.

         25  Road salts include sodium, calcium, potassium and
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          2  magnesium chlorides with the common addition of

          3  sodium ferrocyanide to prevent clumping during

          4  storage and application.  Ferrocyanides are very

          5  persistent but are of low toxicity.  However, in

          6  solution and in the presence of light, they can

          7  dissociate to form cyanide.

          8                 Sodium chloride, the most common

          9  component of road salts dissociates in aquatic

         10  systems into chloride ions (CL-) and sodium cations

         11  (Na+).  While sodium may bond to negatively charged

         12  soil particles or be taken up in biological

         13  processes, chloride ions are less reactive and can

         14  be transported to surface waters through soil and

         15  groundwater.  These salts remain in solution in

         16  surface waters and are not subject to any

         17  significant natural removal mechanisms.  Their

         18  accumulation and persistence in watersheds pose

         19  risks to aquatic ecosystems as well as to water

         20  quality.

         21                 Chloride is found naturally in water

         22  sources, usually at very low concentrations of a few

         23  milligrams per liter (mg/L).  However, chloride

         24  concentrations up to 82,000 mg/L have been detected

         25  in runoff from uncovered salt piles in storage
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          2  yards.  Such drastically increased concentrations

          3  have been shown to have adverse effects on aquatic

          4  life, vegetation and soils, and wildlife.

          5                 Harm to the Environment.  Storage of

          6  uncontained piles of road salt on the waterfront can

          7  damage terrestrial and aquatic resources as

          8  chemicals in these salts seep into soil and

          9  groundwater and run off into surface water.  A group

         10  of Canadian government and NGO environmental experts

         11  conducted a comprehensive five- year scientific

         12  assessment on the ecological impacts of road salt.

         13  In a December 2001 report, the federal Ministers of

         14  the Environment and Health concluded that road salts

         15  that contain inorganic chloride salts, with or

         16  without ferrocyanide salts, are harmful to the

         17  environment and recommended that they be added as

         18  toxic substances to Schedule 1 of the Canadian

         19  Environmental Protection Act, 1999.  Road salts can

         20  adversely impact aquatic organisms, terrestrial

         21  vegetation and wildlife, as explained below:

         22                 Aquatic Organisms.  According to the

         23  above- cited Canadian study, five percent of aquatic

         24  species have a median lethal chloride concentration

         25  of about 210 mg/L, and ten percent of aquatic
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          2  species are affected by chloride concentrations of

          3  240 mg/L.  Lower concentrations may not be lethal

          4  but alter population structure.  For example, some

          5  algae populations are affected by concentrations of

          6  only 12 to 235 mg/L of chloride. In similar studies,

          7  the United States Environmental Protection Agency

          8  determined that chloride ions in concentrations

          9  exceeding 230 mg/L could be toxic to certain forms

         10  of aquatic life.

         11                 Vegetation.  Elevated sodium and

         12  chloride levels in soils create osmotic imbalances

         13  in plants, which inhibits water absorption and

         14  reduces root growth.  Salt also disrupts the uptake

         15  of plant nutrients and inhibits long- term growth.

         16  Environment Canada cites numerous studies

         17  attributing tree injury and decline to road salt

         18  application, concluding that road salts can cause

         19  severe injury to the flowering, seed germination,

         20  roots and stems of roadside plant species.

         21  Degradation of soils and vegetation in buffer areas

         22  between roads and watercourses compromises the

         23  retention and processing of pollutants transported

         24  in stormwater runoff.

         25                 Wildlife.  Behavioral and
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          2  toxicological impacts have been associated with

          3  exposure to mammalian and avian wildlife to road

          4  salts.  Ingestion of road salts increases the

          5  vulnerability of birds to car strikes.  Furthermore,

          6  intake calculations suggest that road salts poison

          7  some birds, especially when water is not freely

          8  available during severe winters.

          9                 Storage Alternatives.  Salt piles

         10  should be stored in facilities that improve

         11  management and prevent losses due to exposure to

         12  wind and precipitation.  Canadian regulations

         13  recommend that salt storage facilities have

         14  permanent roofing, sealed concrete floors over

         15  buried plastic liners, and a drainage system that

         16  runs to an isolated collection area.  The New

         17  Hampshire Department of Environmental Services

         18  requires that disposed snow be stored at least 25

         19  feet from the high water mark of surface water, with

         20  a silt fence or barrier placed between the storage

         21  area and the water.  If this is not possible, then

         22  outside piles should be built on impermeable

         23  bituminous pads and covered with one of the many

         24  types of temporary covering materials, such as

         25  tarpaulin, polyethylene, polyurethane or hypalon.
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          2  Other waterproofing products may be available too.

          3                 About Riverkeeper.  Riverkeeper,

          4  Inc., is an independent, member- supported, not-

          5  for- profit environmental organization with offices

          6  in Garrison and White Plains, New York. Our mission

          7  is to protect the environmental, recreational, and

          8  commercial integrity of the Hudson River and its

          9  tributaries, and to safeguard New York City's and

         10  Westchester County's drinking water supply.  We

         11  carry out this mission using litigation, advocacy,

         12  and public education in communities and schools.

         13  Our members and constituents reflect the diverse

         14  Hudson River Valley: From urban dwellers in New York

         15  City, to fishermen and boaters, to rural upstate

         16  communities.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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